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The Saga of Tsali: Legend Versus Heality

By Jonun K. Fincer®*

Every racial or ethnic group has certain heroes who symbolize the aspirations
and accomplishments of ita members, and for the Cherokee of Morth Carolina
one such figure is Tsali (Jnown as “Charley” to whites of hiz day). Accounts of
hig heroism vary, but the most prevalent story can be quickly summarized: Teali
and his family were among the thousands of Cherokes residing in Georgia,

+ Alabama, Tennessee, and Morth Caroling who were rounded up by the United

States Army in 1838 in preparation for their enforeed removal westward over the
infameus “Trail of Tears.” During the roundup Tsali's wife was brutally mis- —
treated by the soldiers, Enraged, Tsali killed one of his captors and escaped with
his family into the Great Smoky Mountains, where several hundred other In-
dians were already hiding, Major General Winfield Scott, the officer in charge of
removal, did not relish the prospect of tracking down the scattered bands in such
rugged terrain. He had already removed most of the Cherokee Nation, and the
relatively few Mugitives were gpeupying land that was of little value to whites. So, —
the story goes, Scott agreed %o ignore most of the fugitives—in effect giving his
tacit consent for them to remain in North Carolina—if they would turn in Taali
and his accomplices in murder. When informed of this, Tsali said that he did not

. wish to have his own people track him down, and he surrendered voluntarily. As
' a final humiliation, the army required the other fugitive Cherokee to execute

- Tsali, two of his sons, and a brother.'

From these accounts, then, the heroic Tsali emerges and becomes readily

" definable, He sacrificed his own life so that his people could remain in their
- North Carolina homeland; later they would coalesce into the Eastern Band of
. Chemokee Indians. As the anthropologist Paul Kutsche points out, Tsali thus

combines some of the attributes of George Washington (the father of his nation)
and Jesus Christ (who died =0 that others might live).! Today the hagiography of
Tsali takes its most visible form in the romanticized outdoor pageant, Urfo

*Dr. Finger in asociate professor, Department of History, University of Tennessee, Knoxville.
"This is the account found in James Moonay, "Myths of the Cherokee,” 1.5, Congress, House of
Representatives, Nineteenth Annuel Report of the Bureau of American Ethnology to the Secretary of

¢ the Smithsoninn Institution, 16897-95, House Documents, Filty-sisth Congresa, Second Sesion
. (Washington, D.C.: Government Printing Office, 1900), No. 539, Part I, pp. 131, 167-158, here-

inafter cited as Mooney, "Myths of the Cherokee,” Mooney's portion of the report has been re-
printed as Myths of the Cheroliee and Sacred Formulos of the Cheroheps (Mashville, Tenn.: Charles

o Elder, 1072).

'Paul Kutache, “The Teali Legend: Calture Heroes and Historiography,” Ethnakistory, 10 (Fall,
1863), 343, horeinafter cited ns Hutsche, “The Teali Legend.”
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These Hills, witnessed annually by thousands of tourists visiting the Qualla
Boundary Reservation and the town of Cherokee, North Carclina. The pageant
purports to depict the origina of the Eastern Band and devotes considerable at-
tention to Tsali's heroic role (though the theatrical version of Tsali differs
somewhat from most published accounts).?

The best-known scholarly account of Teali was written by the eminent
ethnologist, James Mooney, and appears in his “Myths of the Cherokes,"
published in 1900.' Mooney's principal sources for the Teali episode were

William Holland Thomas, who had been a participant in the events, and |

z remains; what actually happened? One of the few scholars to go beyond

men more than fifty vears after the occurrence of the events they were at- |
" tempting to recall, Thomas, moreover, was a very old man suffering from mental

Washington (Wasituna), Tsali’s youngest son, But Mooney interviewed the two

illness when Mooney met him, and he apparently never told the ethnologist
about his important documentary materials relating to Tsali. Despite the

questionable reliability of Mooney's informants, most writers continue to rely | ° : L
- is possible to present a fairly complete account of the events surrounding Tsali's

. death. It is also possible to answer a related question: does the historical Tsali

upon his account when discussing Tsali. Some also include oral traditions that
persist among the North Carolina Cherokee, but these are suspect because they

vary so remarkably and contain details conflicting with known circumstances of |

1838.*

MNorth Caroling Press for the Cherokee Historical Association, [1861, o. 1950]). According to fgure

Newspaper of Indian America™), September, 1677,

‘Mooney, "Myths of the Cherckee,” 131, 167-158. As an ethnologist, Moeoney was most concemed | 3 g - X ¥ )
with tha traditions, legends, and myths among the Cherokee, He did fot view Tanli's heroism asa (@ PA0Y: L966), 262204, hervinafter cited an Van Every, Disinfierited. Starhey, Chervhes Nation, 328-

myth, howover, but as a well-substantiated event, The thrust of this article is to show that Meoney's |

title is ironically appropriate for Teali as well.

" Accounts relying in large part on Mooney include Alberta and Carson Brewer, Valley So Wild: A
Folk Histery (Knoxvwille: Bast Tennesses Historical Boclety, 1976), 65-67; John P. Brown, Qid Fros.
tiers: The Stary of the Cherohee Indians from Eorliest Times to the Date of Their Remuoval to the
West, 1538 (Kingsport, Tean.: Southern Publishers, 1938), 520-622, herelnafller cited as Brown, Oid
Frontiers; Samuel Carter IlI, Cherohee Sunset: A Notion Betrayed (Garden City, N.Y.: Doubledsy
and Company, 1976), 215-236; Ralph Henry Gabriel, Elios Boudinot, Cherokee, & His Americ
(Morman: Univemity of Qklahoma Press, 1841}, 168-170; Chopoan J. Milling, Red Carclinion
(Chapel Hill: University of North Caroling Press, 19400, 387-368; Henry M. Owl, ""The Eastern Haad
of Cherohee Indians Before and After the Removal” (unpublished master’s thesis, University o
Morth Carcline, Chapel Hill, 1928), 91, 101-105; Douglas L. Rights, The American Indian in North

Coroline (Winston-Salem: John F, Blair, second edition, 15567}, 166, 200-202; W. R. L. Bmith, The |

Story of the Cherohees (Cleveland, Tenn.: Church of God Pullishers, 1028), 166.167, Z84-25,

hereinafter cited as Smith, Story of the Cherokees; Markon L. Starkey, The Cherokee Nation (Mew|
York: Allred A. Knopl, 1946), 326-328, hereinaller cited as Starkey, Cherokee Notion; and Robed b

Sparks Walker, Torchlights to the Cherohees: The Braoinerd Misgion (New York: Macmillan Com.
pany, 1931), FB.39,

Among the accounts contalning oral and “traditional” stories of Teali are Gloria Johoda, The Tl
of Tewra (Mew York: Holt, Rinehart and Winston, 1976), Z26-227; Mollle Sequoyal in Kutsche, “The

Tsali Legend,” 340-343; Grace Stesle Woodward, The Cherokees (Norman: University of Oklahoma |

Press, 1963), 12-13, hereinafter cited as Woodward, The Cherohees; and Dale Van Evey,
Disinherited: The Lost Birthright of the American Indian (New York: William Morrow nnd Com.
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The most important attempt to analyze critically some of the Tsali accounts
hae been Paul Kutsche's 1963 article in Ethnohistory.® Kutsche discussed the
versions related by Mooney, Charles Lanman, Mollie Sequoyah, and several
United States Army officers.” Unfortunately, two factors prevented his being
able to assess adequately the historical accuracy of these conflicting stories: he
was apparently unaware of other evidence that would have helped him to do so;
and, more important, his major interest was not in what actually oceurred but in

- explaining how the informants’ different views reflected their cultural binses.

For the historian interested in the Tsali story, a fundamental guestion

Mooney's narration of events is Mattie Russell. Her unpublished doctoral disser-

- tation (1956) on William Holland Thomas includes an account of the Tsali
- episode which refutes portivns of Mooney's and is the most detailed and ac-
- curate heretofore written.® Russell provides a rough framework for the recon-

struction of the episode and, with the recent discovery of even more evidence, it

match the legendary figure?

In order to understand what took place, it is necessary to know something
about the legal status of the North Carolina Cherokee during removal. These In-
diens were alwayes considered a marginal offshoot of the main portion of the

¢ Cherokes Nation, whose population was concentrated in northern Georgia and
"The pageant is staged throughout each summer tourist season. The script was written by Kermit | astern Lannamse. Honachslsss, the treaty providing for removal, signed in
Hunter and published as Urnito These Hills: A Dramo of the Cherokees ([Chapel Hill]: University of § :
) - Carolina Cherokee as well as to the rest. One group of Cherokee, however,
supplied by the Cherohee Historical Association, the sponsar of Unte These Hills, the drama has sl §
teacted a total audience of more than 3.6 million people from its firet staging in 1950 through the 1978 |
season. Laurence French has recently criticized both Uinto These Hills and the Cherokes Historical ¢
Association in "“Tourlsm and Indian Exploitation: A Social Indictment," Wassafa (“A Mational §

1835 by a minority of the tribe at New Echota, Georgia, applied to the North

428, has an interesting discussion of the conllicting stories nmong the Clerohes.

Helying upon neither Mooney nor *traditional” acevunts is Mathaniel C. Browder, The Cherokes
Indigns and Those Wha Come After: Notes for @ Histary of Cherokee County, North Caroling, 1535-
Iq‘ﬁﬂ (Hoyesville: Draft copy, 1973), 63-T0, 226-257, hereinafter cited as Browder, The Cheroher -
dimns, Browder debunks nearly every other nocount of Tanli whiln offering vnly a bure autline of his
wen versiva. Also highly critical of the *Mooney Myth" is Fred B, Bauer, Lond of the North Caroling
Cherokees (Brevard, N.C.: Gearge E. Buchanan, 10700, 24-25, 54-56, An author whe recognizes Lhe
discrepnncies between Mouney's version and the militacy dispatches is Michael Frome, Strangers in

- High PMaces; The Story of the Great Smoky Mounteins (Garden City, M.Y.: Doubleday and Com.

pany, 196G}, LIT-118. A detailed version of the Teali episode relying in lnrge part on two alleged wit-
nesses is John Preston Arthur, Western North Coroling: A History (From 1730 to 1913) (Ralelgh:
Edwards and Broughton, 1914}, 577-579, hervinafter cited as Arthur, Western North Caroling,

*Kutsche, “The Tsali Legend," 320.357.

"Charles Lunman, Letters from the Alleghany Mounteing (New York: George P, Putnam, 1849),
112114, hervinafter cited as Lanman, Letters from the Aileghony Mowntains, Mollie Sequoyah, nan
Enstern Cherokes, gave an oral account of the Tsall incideat to Kuteche nnd his wife, The army uf-
ficers' reports, with appropriate citotions, appear loter in this article.

*Mattie Russell, "William Holland ‘Thomas, White Chiel of the North Corsling Cherokess™ [un-
published doctoral dissertation, Duke University, Durkam, 1956), 8691, hereinafter cited ns Hussell,
“Willinm Holland Thomas"; see nlso her article, “Devil in the Smokiea: The White Man's Naturs
and the Indinn's Fale,” South Atlantic Quarterly, 73 (Winter, 1874), 03-6, hereinaller ciled as
Russell, “Devil in the Smokies.” It is unfortunate that De. Russell's dissortation has received so little
attention from historians and others who have written about the Eastern Band of Cherckee Indians,
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Map by Robert Lindneus, from Samuel Carter [, Cherokee Sunset: A Nation Betroyed (Garden City, N.Y.: Doubleday and Campany,
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William Hulland Thomas (1805-1803), a white mer-
chant, was an adopted member of the Qeonalultes Chero-
kee bod, Thumas and his Indian followers participated in
the United States Army's roundugp of Teali's band in the
autumn of 1838, Fhotograph of portrait of Thomes {artist
andd date unknown) from Joln Preston Arthur, Western
North Coroling: A History {(Raleigh: Edwards and
Broughton, 1914), facing p. 469,

cloimed a legal right to remain in the state, Members of thal group pointed out
that they had exercised their right, under a treaty of 1819, to withdraw rom the
tribe, seel United States citizenship, and settle along the Oconalufiee River in
the vicinity of Quallatown (pear present-day Cherokee). Known as the

¢ Oconaluftee or Lulty or Qualla Indians, they enjoyed [riendly relations with

their white neighbors, William Thomas, a white merchant, was an adopted
member of the group and possegsed power of attorney to act for them. Thomas
was determined that those Cherokee retaining tribal status and trying to aveid
removal should not jeopardize the right of the Oconaluftes band to remain; con-
saquently, both he and his Indian wards sometimes assiated the army in its

- roundup of tribal members." Tsali and his small band were among those

Cherokee trying to escape the dragnet. This had been their only “crime,”

- however, when Thomas and the United States Army began searching for them in

the fall of 1838,

On October 30, 1838, Second Lieutenant Andrew Jackson Smith, of the First
Dragoons, was returning to Fort Cass, Tennesses, with a detachment of soldiers
and sixteen Indian prisoners when he learned that Tsali's band was camped
nearby, Sending most of his force ahead with the prisoners, Smith and three
enlisted men, accompanied by William Thomas, set out to locate the fugitives,

"Huspell, "William Helland Themas,” 22-23, 36, 89-85; Ruesell, "Devil in the Smokies," 66-66;
Mooney, "Myths of the Cheroles,” 167, 164; John Gulick, Cherokees of the Crossronds {Chapel Hill:
University of Morth Carelina Press for the Institute for Hesearch in Social Science, 1960}, 13, Soe also
George 1. Harmon, "The North Carolina Cherckees and the New Echotn Treaty of 1835," North
Caroling Historicol Review, VI (July, 1929), 237-2563; and Article 2 of "“Treaty with the Cherokess,
1818," in Volume 7, United States Stofutes of Large, 190-198, In 1837 there were at least 303
Deonalultes Cherokee living ot “Qualla Town' who desired to remain in Morth Carolina. Their peti-
Licn to the government is in U8, Congress, Sennte, Committes on Indian Affairs, Memerial of the
Chereher Indions Residing in North Coreling | , . Treaty of 1535, Senate Documents, Twenty-ninth

| Cangress, First Session (Waeshington, [,C.; Ritchie and Heiss, 1846}, No, 408, pp, 17-18, hereinafter
i wited us Memaorial of the Cherokee Indians.

i
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Pennaylvanin and an 1638 graduate of the United
the First United States Dragoons at the time of the

Dragnone until 1881, nfter which time he served as o
general in various United States Cavalry units. Photo-
graph (e, 1864} courtesy Library of Congress, Wash-
ingtaon, D.C.

near where the Tuckasegee River joins the Little Tennessee, Thomas, in an ac-
count written eight years later, said that he and the soldiers spotted the Indians’
rifles leaning against a tree and managed to get to them before the Indians could
react. Neither Lieutenant Smith nor his immediate superior, Lieutenant C, H.
Larned, noted this in their official reports of 1838, Larned merely mentioned
that “two of the fugitives were armed with good rifles' and that all of them sur-
rendered “without difficulty or resistance.” There were eight Indians in camp,
but it was Smith's understanding that twenty belonged to Teali's group. Hoping

the remainder would soon come in and surrender, he decided to spend the night £
in camp with the Indians under guard. By morning four more fugitives had f .
- Larned said that during the day of November first two of Smith's men had dis-

arrived, raising the number of captives to twelve—five men, including Tsali, and
seven women and children.”” Though the army documents are silent on the
point, Mooney identified the other captives as Tsali's wife, brother, three sons,
and their families."

On the same morning, November 1, a messenger brought Lieutenant Smith |
orderg to return immediately to Fort Cass and also conveyed the disquieting i

news that the original sixteen Indian prisoners had escaped. Smith promptly

" William H. Thomas to Genernl Winfield Scott, March 7, 1846, William Holland Thomas Papars,
Manuseript Department, Duke University Library, Durham, hereinafter cited as Thomas Paper.:
Lieutenant A. J. Smith to Lisutenant C. H. Larned, November 6, 1636; and L. Larned to Maj. Gen!
Scott, Movember 5, 1838, Records of the Burenu of Indian Affairs, Letters Heceived, 1824-1880
{Cherokee Emigration), Record Group 75, National Archives, Washington, D.C_, hereinnfter cited 5]
RG 76 (Chesokes Emigration). See also Fussell, "William Holland Themas," 85-86, The letter of
Lisutenant Smith woa published in the following Washington, D.C., newspapers: Glabe, Novembe

17, 1838; Daily National Intelligencer, Movember 19, 1828; and Niles' Notional Register, November £

24, 1838, hereinalter cited as Globe, Daily National Intelligencer, and Niles' National Register.
" Mooney, “Myths of the Cherokee,” 131; see alsa Arthur, Western North Coroline, 578,
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Andrew Jackson Smith (1815-1887), n native of "r
States Military Acndemy, was n second lieutenant in [

Cherokee removal, He remained nttached to the Finst |
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i sant thle messenger to tell the rest of the soldiers to join him on the march; then,
. expecting to consolidate his command before sunset, he set out with his three

enlisted men and twelve prisoners. For some unexplained reason, Thomas did
not accompany them, Smith allowed the Indians to carry their rifles, but only af-

. ter removing the locks and confiscating their powder and ball.” Mooney's and

most other accounts—published and oral—claim the Indians were mistreated
during the day's march. The soldiers supposedly even prodded Tsali's wife with
a bayonet to make her move faster.” The official army reports say nothing about
such mistreatment, and, in fact, General Scott in his report to the War Dapart-
ment emphasized the kindness accorded the captives. Under the cie-
cumstances, of course, one would hardly expect the officers to comment about

- such abuses, had they occurred. Whatever the truth, Smith and his men found

nut.hing on the part of the Indians to arouse suspicion during the day. But that
evening, according to Smith's report,

I discovered an unwillingness among the Indians to travel, & in order to make greater

- speed, | put some of the children on horses, but it was with great difficully that | could

then get them along. 1 suspected all was not right, & frequently cautioned the men to be

) 3 i . F o on thed rd. Shortl i i ifie i i
T Folliwling day e imiaped. bo: A oI e sltastud i & wbusg <l on their gua ortly after sunset 1 discovered a long dirk knife in the possession of ane

of the Indians, & erdered it to be immediately taken from him, He turned it over without
any hesitation, & we had proceeded but a short distance before | spied an axe or
———— which [ also ordered to be taken from them, but, [ am sorry to say, too late, for
L 'hed scarcely finished the order, before [ saw the axe buried in the forehead of one of my

¢ men, This being the signal for attack the others foll immediately to work, & in less than

one minute they killed two, wounded a third, & commenced searching them, & carrying
off every article they could lay their hands on. I, fortunately, escaped unhurt, & owe my
life in & mensure to the spiril & activity of my horse,"

A few days after these events, following an interview with Smith, Lieutenant
Larned filed a report with General Scott which provided additional information.

mcru!'llnd “in order to give their horses to the women and children,” They had
I:an.lnlmd traveling without incident until, “just at sunset,” Smith spotted the
Indian carrying a dirk and had it taken. After this, Lamed said,

"Lt. Smith ta Lt. Larned, November 5, 1838; Lt. Lamed to Maj, Gen. Scott, Movember 5, 1
R 76 (Cherckes Flmig:r-h'un:l: Thomas to General Seott, March 7, 1846, Thomas Papers. Sm?i:h:fi%
the first group of Indian prisoners numbered sixteen, while Larned snid [illeen,

"Moaney, “Myths of the Cherokes,” 131, Other accounts relate more extreme brutality. Mollie
Sequayah snys that Taali’s infant child was aceidentally killed s a cansequence of the soldiers'

. craelty. Kutache, *"The Teali Legend,” 341. The pageant Unto These Hills hos Teali's wife being

killed by n drunken saldier. Woodward, The Cherokees, 12-13, has an oral necount of ow an Tmalian
maiden, about to be raped by two soldiers, killed them with Taali's hatchet, The chivalrous Teali
E]lz;né?-ﬁ::gﬁ;ﬂ:blume to snve his people from further trouble. Sen a similar tale in Van Every,
::M-j. ﬂ_nn. Seott to War Department, November 6, 1638, RG 75 [Cherokes Emigration),
i Lt. $_m|'.I| to Lt. Larned, November 6, 1838, RG 75 (Cherokes Emigration). Although Smith was
in the First [hragoons, the slain enlisted men belonged to the Fourth Infantry Hegiment. Browder,
Thq:ljl‘armku Indinns, 68-69, reprints this letter and condemns Lt. Smith for Meeing from the Indisn
muTdeners,
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all went on quietly for a short time when just after passing a laure]l branch Lieut Smith

perceived a small axe in the hands of ancther Indian who walked in front of him closs

behind the rear man of his party and before the command “take away that axe” could be
wholly uttered the weapon was buried in the brain of the Soldier, who fell lifeless beneath

the feet of Lieut Smiths horse, while ot the Same instant the Corporal in front of the party

was mortally wounded by a blow with the butt of a rifle, the third man nearly Stunned
with o Tomahowk and three Indians Seized the Livut himself, who was enabled to break
from their grasp only by the spirit and activity of his horse, which terrified by their yolls
sprang off instantly at full speed. He was pursued immediately by one of the Indians with
the loaded musket taken from the Corporall] but enly for a short distance, when hi
pemsuer [sic] returned to the mein body and after rifling the dead and wounded men, th
whole of them sought refuge in the mountains which rose abruptly from the read. The me
for whom Lieut Smith had sent in the moming came up very soon alter and every effort

was made to recover some of the Indians, but it was already dark and the mountains into

which they had plunged barely practicable by day light, the search therefore was soon
discontinued.

The Corporal died that night and Lieut Smith in obedience to the orders which he had
received retumned immediately to Fort Cass."

From the reports of Smith and Larned, it appears that the Indians had acted in k!

concert in making their escape; Mooney says they made their plans while con-

versing in Cherolee, conflident the soldiers could not understand what they were |

saying."” Army reports do not indicate which of the culprits was Tsali, but pop-
ular aceounts and traditions would lead one to believe it was either the man with
the ax or the rifle,

Thomas rejoined Smith the same evening of the murders and then accom-
panied him to Fort Cass, where the officer wrote his official report to Larned.

This document was dated November 5, as was Larned’s report to General Scott
at his headguarters in Athens, Tennessee. Scott promptly informed the War

Department of the incident and summoned Thomas and Colonel William 5.
Foster, commander of the Fourth Infantry Regiment. Thomas's expertise in In:
dian matters could be most helpful to Colonel Foster, who was to be in charge of
a punitive expedition. Scott’s succinct orders to Foster, dated November 7,
specified three main obhjectives: (1) “The Individuals guilty of this unprovoked
outrage must be shot down'; (2) the white families living in the area must be
protected; and (3) Foster must "collect all, or as many as practicable, of the
fugitives (other than the murderers) for emigration.” Scott was careful, however,
to distinguish between Thomas's Oconaluftee Indiang and the fugitives. The for-
mer were “not to be considered [ugitives, or to be interrupted, if they continue,
as heretolore, peaceable & orderly,"” while the latter "' can now only be considered

as 80 many outlaws." Scott gave Foster considerable discretionary authority, in- |
cluding the mustering of volunteers for a one-month period. Foster's mission |-

would be completed, Scott said, when he had “done enough to satisfy national
honor in respect to the murders & murderers mentioned,"*

“L4, Larned to Maj. Gen. Scott, November 5, 1838, RG 75 {Cherokee LEmigration).
"Mooney, “"Myths of the Cherokee," 131,

“Maj, Gen, Scolt to Colonel Willlam 5. Foster, November 7, 1838, RG 78 ( Cherckes Emigratiun]. :
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Major General Winfield Scott {1786- 1866},
o of Anericn's most distinguished saldisrs,
was placed in charge of the Cherokee re-
moval. Scott eifered no oljection Lo the deci-
sion of Colenel Willinm Stanhope Foster o
permit Euchello's band of Cherokee to pe-
main in Nerth Coroline fellowing the exe-
cution of Teali. Engraving courtesy American
History Division, New York Public Lilrary,
Astor, Lenox and “Tilden Foundations,

In his report to the War Department, Scott declared that the murders were
 "wholly unprovoked." Despite this, his orders to Foster would have “nothing in
. them of a vindictive character, except as regards the murderers.” He remarked
. that most of the Cherokee were indignant about the murders and that it would
. be easy to obtain the services of many warriors in apprehending the killers. "1
. shall, however, only accept the services of a few runners . . . deeming it against
- the honor of the United States to employ, in hostilities, one part of a tribe
. against another,"””
Scott may have been reluctant to employ one part of the Cherokee MNation
E: ﬂgainat another, but he had no such qualms about using William Thomas and
i his Indian wards to track down the fugitives: “Col. Foster will also have the aid,
b a8 runners, guides, and interpreters, of some of Mr. Thomas's Oconeeluflty In-
- dians, as well as the personal services of Mr. Thomas himself, who takes lively
| interest in the success of the expedition.”™ Later events suggest that Scott ver.
- bally made two additional peints in his instruetions to Foster and Thomas: first,
. they should keep the other fugitive Cherokee from allying with Tsali's band;
- and, second, some of those Fugitives might be allowed, under Foster's dis-
. cretionary authority, to remain in North Carolina if they helped apprehend the
murderers. Although the latter instruction would contravene Scolt's statement
to the War Department about not using tribal members against one another, the

i

"Mauj. Gen. Scott to War Deportment, November 0,
portivns of this lotter were published in the Glabe o
. telligencer on November 19,

1838, RG 75 (Chesvkes Emigration). Relevant
Nevewber 17, 1834, in the Daily Notional -
bl : 1838, and in Niles" Nationel Register on November 24, 1538, Soe also a
; similar hlwlrmm Seott to Jumes Monroe, November 8, 1858, W. H. Thomas Collection, Archives
- ond Special Collections Division, Western Carlina University Library, Cullowhes, hereinafter cited
05 Thomas Collection, WCU. (This James Manroe should not be confused with U [ormer president
. who died in 1831.) :

"Maj. Gen, Scott to War Department, Novembar G, 1838, KRG 75 (Cherckee Emigration),

3
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:_.;-:'ucti.ﬂns of Foster and Thomas indicate they believed Scott would aceept such a

uid pro quo with the fugitives.®
¢ Thomas refused Scott's offer of libersl compensation for undertaking a

I _'r po.ambl.:.r hazardous mission by saying he did not want anyone to question his

“motives., After setting out from Athens with Foster and the troops, he soon

- moved shead to enlist the aid of his Oconaluftee wards. Upon arriving at
- Guallatown, Thomas sent out some warriors to locate Euchella (Utsala), another
- Chercleee fugitive and leader of a ragged, starving handful of people. Euchella's
" wife and son had recently died of hunger while hiding in the mountains, and the
2" old warrior was understandably bitter toward the whites. Yet, he could be of im-
" measurable assistance in finding his fellow fugitive and friend, Tsali (they had
o tesided near one another along the Nantahala River), Thomas apparently con-
“veyed to Buchella the possibility of remaining in MNorth Carolina with the
- Oconaluftes if he and his band would aid in capturing the murderers. This is the

-most plausible explanation for the warrior's arrival at Quallatown on November

- 12, ready to lead his men in pursuit of Tsali. The Ceonaluftee provided an ad-
“ ditivnal foree, under the command of Flying Squirrel. The Lotal number of In-
" digns joining the search was about sixty.®

The most important information concerning the pursuit of Teali is included in
-several letters and enclosures sent by Colonel Foster to General Scott. These are

' located in the Records of the Adjutant General's Office at the National Archives,
. and for some unknown reason all but one have been almost totally ignored by
I scholars. The first letter, dated MNovember 15, 1838, was written at “Camp

- Beott,” on the Little Tennessee River in Macon County, North Carolina, where
Foater and his regiment had been since the evening of November 12, On the
| morning of that day, Foster reported, Lisutenant Larned and William Thomas,

¢ with a mounted company of men, had left for the Oconaluftee Hiver "in pursuil

- of old Charley and his sons.” Two days later Captain George Archibald MeCall

i took & company of men and two Indian guides to the mouth of Deep Creek (the
© gite of present-day Bryson City) and from there followed it into the mountains to
its source; from that point MeCall was to cut eastward and link up with Lieuten- -

ant Larned, who was working his way westward from the Oconaluftee Hiver and

"Spe Thomes to General Scott, March 7, 1848, Thomas Popers; aod William H. Thomas,
Argument in Suppart of the Claims of Chervkes Indians . . . and Per Copite Alluwance (Washington,
.G Mp., 1639), 19, on microfilm reel Mo, 2of W. H, Thomas Popers, Newspapers and Microforms
Department, Duke University Library, Durhom, hersinafter cited us Thomas, Argument in Support
of the Claims of Cherokee Indians; sen also Mooney, “Myths of the Cherokee,” 157, The two

: Cherokes commissioners later said that Foster had made such an agreement with the Indians s

. pursuance of instructions from Ceneral Winfield Scott.” Memarial of the Chervhes Indivns, 16, In

his menzoire, Scott said nothing about the Teali episode amd surprisingly little aboul Cherokee

4 removal. See Winfield Seott, Memoirs of Lisut.-General Scoté, LL0L (Mew York: Sheldon aed

. Company, 2 wolumes, 1864), I, 300-330.

This "List of cherakees who serv'd in capturing charley and athers,” in the handwriting of William b "in his 1539 account of this incident, Themes indicated that the Oconalultee Indinns made the

Hotland Thotnas, is from the Willinm Holland Thomaos Popers, Munuseript Department, Duke Uni: £

only contact with Euchelln, Thomas, Argument in Support of the Cloims of Cherohee nadicne, 19, In
U4, however, he srid that he had gone with o single guide to Euchella's lair and personally con-
- wineed him to help, Thomas to General Scott, March 7, 1846, Thomas Papers, A similar version is in
£ an aecpunt of 1849, Lanman, Letters from the Alleghany Mptntaineg, 112-118, Thomas was seeling a
- favor from Scott in 1846, so it is possible he exaggerated his perscual rele b the events.

1&' WILLME LVI NUMBER §, JANUARY, 1978
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its hranches. Other officers, each with competent guides, were scouring nearbyfgjepared because of his youth. The most interesting aspect of this letter is that
areas but were hampered by rain and fog, “which, in these mountains turns day FF}“L“ viewed hl? mission in the mountains as completed, although Tsali was
into night.” Foster said he planned to examine a “perfect circle of thirty-five fretill at large. This would be logical enough if, as Foster had earlier indicated,
miles" around his camp.® 5 Thali was not a principal figure in the murders.™

Foster informed Scott that he had alresdy accomplished one of hig{f [0 the same communication Foster included a strong plea that Euchella and
assignments—namely, to protect and reassure the "poor and ignorant populs-  band be allowed to remain in North Carolina:
tion™ of the area. A second order, to assemble the fugitives other than the mu
derers, would also be easy to achieve inasmuch as they numbered fewer than 100
and were starving. But the primary goal—to capture and punish the

All the objects of your instructions have been fully complivd with; (the emigrating of
the Cutlying Indians alone excepted) and these General are very fow in number; and they

e : ; _'_DUI:IBEBL principally of Buchella’s band; this band and their chief, from the first have
murderers—"is from the smallness of their numbers & the nature of the country Ehehaved nobly; himself, his brother, and Wau-chu-sha-[sic] and six others are the only

ot doubiul Fosta s Seott, hoove that i menand s were o i o i b i ot Fory S v o i i mt i
. ' . : e d 0 consequence of their friendship, indelotigable, & untiring industry, in the late pursuit,
them." He did not mention that his allies included Euchella’s band and the f¥ cpprehension, & punishment, of the murderers, to remain in this country, so long as they
Oconaluftee Indians, who had been on the trail of Teali for several days." 'f conduct themselves a5 peaceble [sic] citizens of North Carolina, subject to the final deci-
(On Movember 19 Foster again reported to Scott, this time to announce “that [ sion of the Government [.] T march tomorrow for Fort Cass; upon my arrival at which
have caopitured {through the exertions of Mr. Thomas, the 0. co ne lufty Indians, § place, [ shall give you & detailed report of all my procesdings in this country: To remain
and Euchella’s band, headed by himself) two of the murderers” They wen here longer T consider as wholly unnecessary; [ hear nothing of fugitives, or outlying
Tsali’s oldest son, Nantayalee Jake, and Nantayalee (or Big) George, who, ac Indigns—{except Buchella's band.} | do not believe there are sixly souls, in tlha whole
cording to Foster, “were the principal actors in the murder.” Also taken prisoner ‘?w.uh'.'-'; perhaps fifteen or twenty grown men, poor, need;.-_. nalked, _ann:l destitute, su-
were Tsali's wife and the wife and little daughter of George. Euchella's men and tiely harmless, slmd wholy {5.":} fwyffamisive, mnd aven “_Hul' to this sparcely seitled
the Qconaluftes, by then numbering about forty, were aiding the mounted com: fountry: these Sixty Souls might, no doubt be collected in the next two months.”
pany “in close pursuit of the remaining murderers.” Of the three men still un-
captured, Foster said, only one, Lowen, “was active in the murder.” Thus,
Foster's informants indicated that at most Tsali had played only a minor role in
the murders.® i
Just five days later, on November 24, Foster triumphantly notified Scott thal
his mission was finished. Of the twelve Indians held as prisoners by Lisutenan

Foster enclosed a petition signed by thirty-one residents of the area. The
etitioners teslified that Euchella's band was “a well disposed, peaceable, inof-
ensive, body of peopls, mostly women and children principally unarmed & few
in number” who had been “very usgeful lo us the inhabitants of this district."”
They called attention to the band's recent service in apprehending the mur-

Smith at the time of the murders, all but Tsali had been captured. Three adult g anid = ol Lh.at they h% T e t.h.arn.rau. ."""T'H tha .fe'dumi
" z : L government “can finally decide upon the matter of their ultimate residence,
males “were punished yesterdasy morning by the Cherokees themselves in the g7 s 2o ; p i
resence of the 4th Regt. of Infantry.” Only in this indirect manner did Fosterf 1 oF near, us.” The petitioners pledged in the meantime to do their utmeost, to
ju BEt- - ¥ i turn over any lawbreaker from the band to state authorities.®

acknowledge the executions that had taken place, Teali's son Washington was On the same day that he wrote to Scott, Foster issued the following

;f_]:lrr.n:]amatiun:

: . N 5 ' Know all people by these presents, that I, Willinm Stanhope Foster, a Colonel in the
"All of Colonel Foster's letters and enclosures were included with o letter General Scobt sent bo U |5 ‘Army of the United States, in command of the Trmops now in North Carclina de, in con.

Adjutont Generol. Maj. Gen. Winfield Scott (from Hendguarters, Eustern Division, Utica, Nenfd 2 3 -
York) to Adjutant General's Office, December 28, 1818, Records of the Adjutant General's Olfic e sidecation of the general good character, & peaceable, inoffensive, and uselul conduct of

1780°5-1917, Letters Received, Main Series, 1622.1850, File Designation 5-568-1838, Record Grog |

94, Mational Archives, hereinafter cited as RG 94, See specifically Colone] Foster to Maj. Gen, Scolt |

MNovember 16, 1838 [enclosure "A™ of 5-568-1833), RG 94, :
“Colonal Foster to Maj. Gen, Scott, Movember 15, 1838 (enclosure A" of 5-568.1838), RG b

Fuaster also reported that Teali and two sons, John and Mantoyalee Joke, hod separated from the e . : L.

other male fugitives, Mantaynlee George and Lowen. 1t is probable that the son Foster called “Joha” 7 {!n|uﬂnl.Fn.!1.arl..g Paj. EP_E'-E“"“- D"?""“b!r 24, 1838 (enclosure “C" of ?--5!33-]535]. RG 94, This

wap actually Washingten, The 1850 census for Haywood Counly lista an Indian named John ._I'!“'“ mentions neither Teali nor Washington by name, but the information it provides and later

Washington whe was the appropriate age, Seventh Census of the United States, 1850: Morthis :i";’.‘"iﬁ';f-" inclusion of their names by this writer, Washington was apparently about sixteen yenrs

Carolina, Haywaod County, Population Schedule, 58, copy in the Archives, Division of Archives sad 7 5 2 J ¥ ! s

Histary, Raleigh, If John and Washington were not the same persan, there semuins the prolilem o lﬂcm?l Fuster to Maj. Gen. Scott, Nuvember 24, 1818 (enclosure " of 5.568- 183), R 04, See

what became of John, who was not among those executed. 1t is unclear what relationship, if sny, Cals0 - mm H. Thimas, '|.|.TH:|_|:I.I:EI:|. claim :Iuhrmt.ind 5] !.I‘!.va Unl.!ed Staw? Igm-:rnmunl seeking pay-

Taali had with Nantayalee George and Lowen (whom Thomas called “Lowna"). Thomas, Argumen! -:ml:lt of meney spent to provide Euchei!tu s band of |nth!'|5 with food. Thomas Papers,

in Suppart of the Claims of Clerokee Indiuns, 19, o “Petition duted Movember 18, 1838, signed at Jor Welsh's house, Macun County, Morth Caraling
*Calonel Foater to Maj. Gen. Scott, November 19, 1895 (enclosure “B" of 5.568.163), RG gy | (mnclosurs "D of 5-668-1838), RG 84,

THE NOATH CARCLINA HISTORICAL REWEW BiCEtME LV, NUMBER 1 JANUARTY. ¥
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24, 18348, granting to “Euchella and lis band of about thirty Souls . . . permission to live kn this coun

shall be made in this matter. . . " From Fedoral Records, Bureau of [ndian Affaics, Letiers Aep
ceived, 1824-1880, microfilm wm in State Archives,

I

b

1
A handwritten copy (corrected) of Colonel Willinm Stanhope Foster's proclamation af Movembil

Teat: Lecexp VERrsus REaLrmy 15

Euchella and his band of about thirty Souls; combined with his and their solmen [sic]
- pledges to me given of good and peaceable conduct, and obedience, to the Laws of North
: - Carcling, as well as their promise to apprehend, and deliver, any offender, of their Libe
© against such Laws to the Civil Authority of the State, and more particularly in considera-
i tnn. of his recent good actions, in pursuing, capturing, delivering, and finally punishing
" the outlows, and murderers, of Charley's band grant to him the aforesaid Chief, Euchella,

i hiz Brother, and all other of his band as aforesaid my permission to live in this country, as

*“peaociates and Brothers, of the O co ne lufty Indians untill [sic] a final decission [sic]

* shall be mude, in this matter by the Goverment [sic] at Washington, and I de hereby

:_t:hlrga all Troops, and request, all citizens to respect this my permission in the slrictest
“'manner, until such final decission of the Goverment shall be made known.™

Foster wrote his final letter to General Scott on December 3, 1838, This is his
one dispatch that has received previous attention from scholars. In ib Foster

G reported that Euchella and Wa chu cha had finally captured Teali himself and
. had executed him at noon on November 25, the day after Foster and his men had

- left the mountains. Thus, he said, the honor of both the United States and the

. Fourth Infantry Regiment had been satisfied. Foster reported that the only other

fugitives he had encountered on his mission were members of Euchella's band,
who were relessed upon “final termination of the affair.,” Because of their
psgistance in apprehending the murderers, he repeated his request that they be

i allowed to remain in the mountains with William Thomas and the Oconalufles—
* Indians. Foster made a special point of commending Drowning Bear (Yona-

- puska), the aged chiel of the Oconaluftes, who had been both honorable and use-

" ful in the recent events®

Foster's reports provide little information about how the Indians were tried or
how their executions were earried out. In his 1839 account of the affair William

. Thomas enid simply that when the murderers were captured they slill had in
| their possession the caps and other items taken from the dead soldiers. This

physical evidence and the testimony of other Cherokee comprised an overwhelm-
ing case against them, and they admitted their guilt.®
The Hamilton (Tennesses) Gazette reported that of the first eleven prisoners

¢ token, Colonel Foster and his Cherokee allies agreed that three deserved death.
Six Indian executioners were selected, two to fire at each of the condemned men;

i
j.r.-u' e 1.-.-1.-'.- //&'f.‘; P {

one was to aim at the head and the other at the heart. After Foster placed a
“bandage’ over the prisoners’ eyves, the three were shot in the presence of the
Fourth Infantry. The Indians were buried near the graves of the two soldiers Lhey
had slain. Foster, according to the newspaper, had so much confidence in the
Cherokee to mete out proper punishment that he and his men did not remain for

WProelpmation of Cologel Willinm 5. Foster, Movember 24, 1838 (pnclogure “E"™ of S-56GH-1H38],

CRG
try [Morth Carolina], as nssociates and Brothers, of the O co ne I.ut'r.:-' Indinns untill  final decissios .

'Gojuml Foster to Maj. Gen. Scott, December 3, 1838 (unlettered encloaure of 5-566-1638), RO 14,
. The fact that portions of this letter were published probally explains why it, out of several in 5-GG8-
1838 of RG B4, has received attention from scholars. See the Qlobe, January 4, 1839, and Niles'

- MNational Register, January 6, 1838, By the time Foater wrote this letter Scott had been tranalerred b
- Mew York State, where trouble was brewing along the Canadian boundary,

' *Thomas, Argument in Support of the Cloimes of Cherokee [ndions, 19,
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the execution of Tsali. He was not disappointed, for Tsali was shot in the same]
manner.” In the estimation of Thomas, at least, the Indian allies had thus ac{
complished in a few days what might have taken the army ‘“‘months, and;

probably years” to conclude.®

There is no evidence that Foster forced the Cherckee to perform the execu
tiong, and, in fact, one account says the Indians insisted upon executing thei
brethren themselves,” This is at least plausible, for during the previous century
the Cherokee had on cccasion given “satisfaction” by executing tribal memb

who were guilty of murdering outsiders.” Thomas stated that the Indians felt the|

Tsav: Lecenn VErsus REALITY 17

And what of Tsali? It would be too much to expect that his story would escape
the attention of writers more imaginative than William Thomas and Colonel
Foster, As early as 1849 Charles Lanman, & Whig journalist, had set the stage for
i the emerging legend of a heroic Tsali by adding a romantic twist to his death.

Lanman portrays Tsali making an impassioned speech before his execution, ex-
- pressing his love for his homeland and family and rebuking Euchella.® Such a
. speech was almost a stock item for nineteenth-century writers succumbing to the
* “noble savage' literary convention. Perhaps Tsali made such a speech, but there
- was no mention of it at the time of his death. What is interesting about Lan-
man's account, however, is the fact that he had been a recent guest of Thomas

die for their offense, as the ancient custom existing between the whites and and had presumably heard of Tsali from him. Perhaps in the 18408 Thomas

executions were almost an obligation: Euchella told the doomed men “they muslti

Cherokees, required life for life. They were then, as is the practice of th
Cherokees, shot by his warriors.” On the other hand, it is possible that
Euchella and the other Cherokee viewed the executions not as an ancient obliga-
tion but simply as an unpleasant necessity. Regardless of what the army actually
required of them, they perhaps believed they had to perform the task in order to
retain Colonel Foster's favor. Since many whites as well as Indians viewed
removal as an injustice, Foster no doubt preferred that the records show the
Cherokee rather than the army had executed the prisoners.

General Scott believed that Foster had handled his mission with his usual “in-
telligence, judgment & success'’ and expressed neither surprise nor anger over
the decision to allow Euchella to remain in North Carolina, In January, 1839, the
commissioners for Cherokee removal officially agreed to permit Buchella and his
band to remain with the Oconaluftee. Eventually, after the vagaries of many
years, these and a few other Indians in western North Carolina acquired a large
tract of land and received recognition as the Eastern Band of Cherckee
Indians—with full rights to remain in the state.™

" ndated extract from Gazette (Hamilton, Tennesses) published in Miles' Nations! Register,
January b, 1839, and Daily National Intelligencer, January 7, 1838, hereinafter cited as Gorelte,
There was nie mention of the source for the Guzette article. See also Willinn H. Thomas Lo Matthes
Ruseel, November 26, 1638, Thomns Collection, WCU. An army officer seid that the victims hed
been tied to trees before being shot. Captain Juhn Page to T, Hartley Crawford, commiss ol 1n-

- believed a little embellishment of the episode would reflect well upon the
- Eastern Cherokee, In any case, the ennobling of Tsali begun in 1849 has con-
| tinued, One writer calls him a “grand hero" who made the “supreme sacrifice™
- for his people.” Another says that he is a lgure who has “scared to an eminence
. in Cherokee annals” comparable to that of great heroes like Sequoyah.*® A third
auther, referring to his “sacrifice,” says that “History records no finer act of
patriotism.” Yet another, reaching a conclusion that can hardly be disputed,
. calls him the “beloved idol" of the Eastern Band.” Finally, the author of a re-
. cent novel about Tsali says the warrior “deserves a prominent place in the
national heritage of the entire nation. . . . Surely Tsali can stand shoulders high
- with any uther national hero.”"?
One problem with hero worship is that the real person and his exploits often
" become obscured in shrouds of emotionalism, polemics, and selective lorget-
| fulness. So it has been with Tsali. But on the basis of evidence now available, it
- is possible to make a number of conclusions about the whole episode that place
- him in a somewhat different light from that of the heroic legend.
First, there is no documentary evidence to support the charge that the soldiers
- of the United States Army mistreated Tsali and his band. General Scott, in fact,
 had specifically ordered his men to show every kindness toward the Indians dur-
i ing removal. ™ This dees not mean that such cruelty did not ocour—merely that a

dinn Alfairs, Decomber 4, 1838, RG 75 (Cherokee Emigration); see alse Arthur, Western
Carolina, 578-5T8.

O Thomas, Argument n Sugport of the Claime of Cherokee Indinns, 19,

* Arthur, Western North Caroling, 578.

# Jghn Phillip Reid, A Law of Blowd: The Primitive Law of the Cherokee Nution {Mew York: Ne
York University Press, 1970}, 150, 170-171; and Wilcomb E, Washburn, The Indicn in America (N

York: Harper and Row, 1975), 17-18, Reid has a detailed pnalysis of the practice of Blood retalistios -

a8 it operated within the context of kinship.

*Thomas, Argument in Support of the Cloims of Cherokee fndians, 19, The Hamilton Gozette sa
that "*'Blood for Blood® is the governing principle” of the Cherokee.

*Maj. Gen. Scott to Adjutant General, December 28, 1538, 5-fE- 1638, RG 94; Memoriol of the
Cherolee Indians, 16, For the story of the Enatern Cherokee in the years immediately following
Teali episode, see Russell, "Willinm Helland Thomas,” chapters I¥-X11; Russell, “Devll in t
Smokies,” 59-69; Moaney, "Myths of the Cherokee,” 158-181; Charles C. Rayce, "“The Cherokee M

tion of Indians: A Marrative of Their Official Relations with the Colonial and Federal Governments, i

118, Congress, House of Ropresentatives, Fifth Annual Report of the Burent of American Etfusol
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- to the Secretary of the Smithsonion Institution, 1883- 84, House Documents, Forty-sighth Congress,
- First Session {Washington, D.C.; Government Printing Office, 1887), 313-300; nnd Richard W. lobst,
- “Willinm Helland Thomas snd the Cherckee Claims,” a paper presented at the Ninth Annual
Meeting of the Southern Anthropologicnl Sociely, Yirginin Polylechnic Institute nind Stote Univer-
| sity, Blackshurg, Virginin, in April, 1874, The meeting will be hereinafler cited as Ninth Annual
Me#ting, Bouthern Anthropelogicnl Soviety.
"Lanman, Letters from the Alleghany Mountuina, 113-114.
"Bmith, Story of the Cherokees, 16T, 225,
o "Van Every, Disinherited, 563264,
"Brown, (Nd Frontiers, 521
"Woodward, The Cheroliecs, 13.
-, "Denton R, Bedford, Teali (San Francisco: Indian Historian Press, 1972), x-2i. In stark and lonely
comirast Lo Lhe paeans of proise is Browder's conclusion that Teali, "lar frem being & here . . . mel a
i fate appropriote to his deeds.” Browder, The Cherohee fadians, T i
L "Drders Mo. 256, Headguarlers, Eastern Division, Cherokes Agency, Tennesses, May 17, 1838, in
A 1.8, Congress, House of Hepresentatives, Remoool of the Chervhees, Executive Docuwments, War
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reasonable doubt exists as to the army's culpability in the Tsali episode, Whati
clear is that the Indians willfully killed two soldiers rather than just one (wh
Mooney implies was accidentally slain).” And, if one is to believe Colonel Foste
and his informants, the younger male Indians rather than Tsali were the pring
cipal actors in the murders.

The evidence regarding General Scott’s role, while not clear-cut, does seem
sustain traditional accounts. Scott may well have told William Thomas and§
Colonel Foster they could promise the other fugitives that they would be lel
alone, at least for the time being, if they aided in the capture of Tsali. As fo
Thomas, it is obvious he was an important participant in the events, but therei
no evidence to suppm't Mooney's tale of his v'tsit.i.ng Taali’s lair after the murde

by other Cherokee, apprehauded and executed by them. Thus, there was -ha
“noble sacrifice.” 501

It is unfair to claim the army humiliated the Indians by having them execu !
Teali and his cohorts; instead, the executions may logically be viewed eitherasafs ™"
traditional Cherokee means of giving “satisfaction” to outsiders or simply as anf
action calculated to win Colonel Foster's favor, More important, the capture and
execution of Tsali in no way affected the right of the Oconaluftee Cherokes tog
remain in North Carolina. These Indians already had at least tacit permission tofi ="
stay. Only Euchella's small band directly benefited from participation in t
events.”

Finally, although Tsali does not measure up to his legend, he may be views
as heroic insofar as he was consciously resisting the enforcement of an unjust, a2
bitrary policy—Cherokee removal, Unfortunately, there is no way of knowin ba
what his thoughts or motives were at the time. But quite apart from what he s

Eastern Band of Cherokee Indians, affirming their traditional attachment
their homeland. As long as his legend has meaning to his people it will contin
to endure,

451, pp. B-11.

*Mooney, “Myths of the Cherokee,™ 131,

“Mooney, “Myths of the Cherckee," 158, Amuming that Mooney fnithfully related what was in ]
him, it appenss that the aged Thomas hnd created the story out of confused memories of his missioEi,
to Teali's camp before the murders. Or, perhaps he willfully exaggerated his own exploits. Kutsch
underestimates Thomas's role but is quite comrect in saying that it had become exaggerated
Muooney's time. Kutsche, *The Teali Legend,” 346-348, i

" This point has been most recently made b_'.r Duane H. King in “The Origin of the Eastern Bondof i1
Cleerokees as 8 Social and Political Entity," a paper presented at the Ninth Annual Mwhu..'.
Southern Anthropological Society. A revised version of that paper will be published in the mag
future in Duane H. King (ed.), The Cherokee Notion: A Troubled History (Knoxville: University Jf
Tenneases Pross, [projected 1979]),




